
Mayor and Council Transit Task Force 
A G E N D A 

Monday, April 6, 2015 at 4:00 p.m. 
Location:  149 N. Stone, Second Floor 

Tucson, AZ 85701 
 

               SUGGESTED 
TOPICS       TIME ALLOTTED 
 
 

1. Call to Order  
 

2. Introductions / Roll Call         5 Minutes 
 
3. Approval of March 2, 2015  Minutes       5 Minutes 
  
4. Call to the Audience       10 Minutes 

 
5. Update on Transit/Announcements      10 Minutes 

 
6. Five Year Financial Forecast Presentation     30 Minutes 

 
7. Pass Product Discussion       20 Minutes 

 
8. Bus Stop Signage Presentation      10 Minutes 

 
9. Broadway-Houghton Park and Ride     10 Minutes 

        
10. Call to the Audience       10 Minutes 

 
11. Next meeting date and time/Meeting schedule      5 Minutes 

 
12. Agenda items upcoming meeting          5 Minutes 

 
13. Adjourn       
 

  
Action may be taken on any item. 

 
(Material, if available, can be provided by contacting Karen Rahn at 520-837-6584) 

Pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the members of the Mayor and Council Transit 
Task Force and to the general public that the Mayor and Council Transit Task Force will hold the following 

meeting which will be open to the public. 

  



Mayor and Council Transit Task Force 
MINUTES 

Monday, March 2, 2015, 4:00 p.m. 
Location 201 N. Stone, 6th Floor, Public Works Building 

Tucson, AZ 85701 
          

 
1. Call to Order  

 
Meeting was called to order at 4:08 p.m. with eight (8) of the eleven (11) members 
present which established a quorum. 

 
2. Introductions / Roll Call  

 
 Members Present: Eugene Caywood, Chair (Ward 5) 
    Suzanne Schafer, Vice Chair (Ward 3) 
    Margot Garcia, (Ward 6) 
    Michael Wall (Mayor) 
    Sami Hamed (CTAC)    
    Brian Flagg (Ward 2) 
    Linda Dobbyn (CTAC) 
    Peggy Hutchison (Ward 1)   
    David Heineking, U of A Advisory Member 
     
 Members Absent: Vacant (Ward 4) 

     Vacant (CTAC) 
    Vacant (CTAC)  
 
 Staff Present:  Jeremy Papuga, Transit Administrator 

Jared Forte, Assistant General Manager of Sun  
Tran/Sun Van    
Kandi Young, Marketing & Communications Director for 
Sun Tran/Sun Van 
Davita Mueller, Sun Tran Planning Analyst 

     Tisha Bruce, Assistant Finance Director/Sun Tran 
     Todd Noble, Smart Card Manager 
     Sabrina Herrera, Assistant General Manager/Sun Van 
   

3. Approval of February 2, 2015 Minutes  
 
Motion: A motion was made to approve the minutes as submitted.   
 
Seconded 

 

Pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the members of the Mayor and Council 
Transit Task Force and to the general public that the Mayor and Council Transit Task Force will 

hold the following meeting which will be open to the public. 
 



Transit Task Force 
March 2, 2015 
Page 2 
 

Motion Passed:  Unanimously 
    

4. Call to the Audience 
 

Jim Thomas – Mr. Thomas talked about the Peace Fare and how nice it was to share a 
table with the Southern Arizona Transit Advocates.  He mentioned that it would be nice 
if there was information at the bus stops to indicate which routes stop there and maybe 
the bus stop number or route name could be included.  Mr. Thomas also noted that 
while riding the streetcar, he noticed that the streetcar announces the Convention 
Center when passing but does not announce the Greyhound Bus Depot which is across 
the street.  He also thought it would be nice if the streetcar announced what bus it 
could connect to. 
 
Richard Mayers – Mr. Mayers stated that when buying value on the SunGo card at the 
transit center, there is no way to add a discrete amount to the card. He suggested that 
there should be a way to add less than $10. 
 
Camille Kershner – Ms. Kershner mentioned that when she goes to work in the 
morning, four buses are at the park-and-ride at the same time.  Some idle for a half 
hour.  She questioned the logic of having a bus come in at 6:30 when it doesn’t leave 
until 6:50 a.m. A new park-and-ride is being built on Broadway and Houghton and 
there is no service planned to go there.  Ms. Kershner also stated that the signage 
needs to be updated at the park-and-ride.  She also questioned having overlapping 
routes; she sees the Route 9 and Route 20 right behind each other and also the Route 9 
and Route 15 behind each other. 

 
5. Update on Transit/Announcements 

 
The Mayor and Council will be reviewing the final Ronstadt Transit Center (RTC) 
requests for proposals (RFP) regarding the development process at tomorrow’s 
meeting in executive session. 
 
Margot Garcia is now the Transit Task Force representative for the Pima Association 
of Government (PAG) 2045 Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) process. PAG will be 
spending the spring doing traffic modeling with 12 model runs; there are four different 
transportation scenarios using three different land-use patterns. The next committee 
meeting is in April. 
 
Jarrett Walker, consultant stakeholder meeting is planned for Saturday, April 25.  
Jeremy Papuga will be talking to the Walker Group next week about their data request 
needs in advance of the meeting. 
 
The RTA Transit Working Group will be discussing performance measures planned for 
RTA funded routes.  With limited budget and reduction in revenues, they want to make 
sure allocated dollars to routes are meeting some level of productivity. 
 



Transit Task Force 
March 2, 2015 
Page 3 
 

Margot Garcia expressed her concerns regarding the transit center redevelopment 
proposal.  The TTF asked to be named as a specific group in the Ronstadt Transit 
Center Request for Proposal.  The TTF was not specifically named.  Rebecca Ruopp 
from the Office of Integrated Planning discussed the process.  There are TTF 
representatives on both the voting and non-voting side of the evaluation committee.  
The process of the Procurement Department is that the evaluation committee goes to 
the Mayor and Council and cannot go to the TTF before the Mayor and Council.  The 
proposers will be asked to make a presentation to the public with an opportunity to 
make revisions to their proposed plans and forward to Procurement. Ms. Ruopp stated 
that there will be a variety of places within the process for the public, including the 
TTF, to provide input. Discussion followed. 
 
Motion:  A motion was made to request the OIP and Mayor & Council to allow the 
Transit Task Force to have significant input into the RTC RFP Process. 
 
Seconded 
 
Motion Passed:  6-2 
 
Motion:  A motion was made to request information from TDOT as to why 
deliberations for this item are being done in executive session. 
 
Seconded 
 
Motion Passed:  Unanimously 
 
Suzanne Schafer reported on the Peace Fare and made the following points: 

• We need to get more information out about night and weekend service. 
• People still do not know that they can use their economy SunGo card and ID on 

the streetcar. 
• People like getting information from bus riders; partnering with other groups 

for peer-to-peer information was suggested. 
 

6. New Fare Product Marketing Strategies and Implementation 
 

Jeremy Papuga gave a quick introduction and asked the TTF to give direction after the 
presentation for the Summer Youth Pass and Annual Pass.  The Summer Youth Pass is 
on the agenda for the Mayor & Council meeting. 
 
Kandi Young gave a PowerPoint presentation on the new pilot pass program, 
marketing, and implementation.  Discussion took place. 
 
Motion:  A motion was made that the TTF approve the pilot programs for SummerGo 
(student pass) and the Annual Pass. 
 
Seconded 



Transit Task Force 
March 2, 2015 
Page 4 
 

 
Motion Passed:  Unanimously 

  
7. Broadway Corridor Improvements and Transit Services 

 
Gene Caywood started the discussion and stated that it is important for the TTF to 
discuss the Broadway Corridor to make sure that the alignment accommodates transit. 
Margot then talked about the two kinds of bus stops that are proposed.  One is a 
traditional pullout at the major intersections and the second is an improved in-lane bus 
stop. This second design has the bicycle path going behind the bus stop and bus pullout 
to assist in removing the conflict between cyclist and buses.  Discussion took place. 
 
Motion:  A motion was made to have the Transit Task Force support the two types of 
bus stops proposed by the Broadway Corridor Project both the in-lane bus stops and 
pullouts only at major intersections. 
 
Motion Seconded 
 
Motion Passed:  Unanimously 

 
8. Sun Van Payment System and Reporting 

 
Jeremy Papuga mentioned that this was an information-gathering session and 
introduced Todd Noble, Smart Card Manager for Sun Tran/Sun Van. Mr. Noble passed 
out and discussed a flow chart regarding Sun Van payments.  Tisha Bruce, Assistant 
Finance Director for Sun Tran explained that they are presently working with the 
vendors to get the two systems to talk to each other – the accounting and the database 
software. Sabrina Herrera, Sun Van, discussed how the Trapeze system for dispatch 
and rides are linked together. Discussion followed. 
 

9. Update on DDD/DES Funding 
 

Jeremy Papuga said they are still working on the qualification process with the State to 
be a qualified vendor. 

 
 

10. Call to the Audience 
 
Allen Benz – Mr. Benz stated that State Farm is in the process of locating their 
corporate headquarters in Tempe.  One of the reasons they chose Tempe was due to the 
very good transit system. 

 
11. Next meeting date and time/Meeting schedule 

 
The next meeting is scheduled for Monday, April 6, 2015 at 4:00 p.m. 
 



Transit Task Force 
March 2, 2015 
Page 5 
 
 

12. Agenda items upcoming meeting 
 

Jeremy Papuga asked that the Five (5) Year Transit Financial Forecast be included in 
the Agenda for the next meeting. 

 
13. Adjourn 

 
The meeting adjourned at 6:03 p.m. 
 



 
 

 
 
 

 
 
Item 5: Update on Transit/Announcements 

 
   Page: 1 of 1 

  
April 6, 2015 
 
Issue – This is a standing agenda item to inform committee members of relevant transit 
information within the City of Tucson and around the region. 
 
Staff Recommendation – None. This is an information item. 
 
Background – There are several city departments, interest groups and committees that are 
discussing various aspects of public transportation.  Committee members as well as staff will have 
the opportunity to share information with the group and give updates on relevant projects.  
 
Present Consideration – A list of projects, committees and stakeholders is provided below for a 
possible update to task force members. 
 
Projects: 
Ronstadt Transit Center Redevelopment 
2045 RTP Process 
Transit Visioning Process 
ADOT Intercity Rail Study 
 
Committees: 
RTA Transit Working Group 
 
Stakeholder Groups: 
Bus Riders Union 
Friends of the Streetcar 
Living Streets Alliance 
Old Pueblo Trolley 
Southern Arizona Transit Advocates 
 
Financial Considerations – None 
 
Attachments:  None. 

 

 TRANSIT TASK FORCE MEMORANDUM 



 
 

 
 
 

 
 
Item 6: Five Year Financial Forecast 

 
   Page: 1 of 1 

  
 
Issue –  This is an agenda item to update Transit Task Force members on the development and 
presentation of the Five Year Financial Forecast to Mayor and Council.  
 
Staff Recommendation – None.  This is an information item.  

Background – The Five Year Financial Forecast is a working document providing a picture of 
projected revenues and expenditures based on current service.  Fiscal Year projections for FY 
2016 through FY 2020 were built using the FY 2015 adopted budget. This includes costs 
associated with providing transit services, ridership and subsequent passenger revenues, Federal 
Transit Authority (FTA) funds, Regional Transportation Authority (RTA) funds and other 
revenues including advertising; which is balanced by the City of Tucson’s general fund.   
 
The Independent Audit and Performance Commission (IAPC) was directed by Mayor and Council 
to review the Five Year Transit Financial Forecast.  That review was completed and a copy of the 
report provided to Mayor and Council in January of 2015. A copy of the review is attached.   
 
Present Consideration – Staff has provided information on the Five Year Forecast and IAPC 
review. Staff would like feedback from task force members on the documents as presented.      
 
Financial Considerations – None 
 
Attachments:  Five Year Financial Forecast FY 2016 through FY 2020 

Review of Transit Financial Forecast by the Independent Audit and Performance 
Commission dated January 7, 2015    

 

 

 TRANSIT TASK FORCE MEMORANDUM 



Attachment A ‐ Five Year Financial Forecast

FY 2014   
Actuals 

FY 2015    
Budget 

FY 2015 
Projection 

 FY 2016 
Forecast 

FY 2017 
Forecast 

FY 2018 
Forecast 

FY 2019 
Forecast 

FY 2020 
Forecast 

Revenue Sources:
Farebox 12,709,371       15,505,090       13,350,220       13,566,230        13,788,030       14,087,348       14,393,156       14,705,612      

Regional Transportation Authority 43,697,442       15,818,710       16,462,300       15,758,920        15,337,410       15,621,410       15,911,140       16,206,690      

Mass Transit Fund ‐ General Fund 39,870,325       44,279,140       44,208,813       48,458,380        48,679,290       54,104,560       54,010,450       56,459,370      

Mass Transit‐Sun Link ‐ General Fund 85,489               905,170             2,271,490          3,136,950           3,245,350          3,347,362          3,464,064          3,583,758         

Federal Funding  15,566,845       26,292,740       26,891,267       26,600,570        11,547,840       20,689,200       18,264,200       16,831,200      

1 Other Funding Sources 9,740,561          1,739,580          1,047,600          1,428,740           1,351,270          1,434,100          1,501,690          1,572,340         

Total 121,670,033     104,540,430     104,231,690     108,949,790      93,949,190       109,283,980     107,544,700     109,358,970    

Expenditures by Mode:
Sun Tran Fixed & Express Routes 64,639,410       77,420,400       76,471,990       76,638,950        68,403,650       82,632,090       80,135,060       79,848,630      

Sun Van Paratransit 16,648,310       20,274,200       19,658,630       21,613,930        17,865,010       18,793,490       19,361,060       21,266,350      

Transit Services 2,290,743          2,644,270          2,644,270          4,988,860           1,830,150          1,864,050          1,898,970          1,934,950         

Sun Link Streetcar 38,091,570       4,201,560          5,456,800          5,708,050           5,850,380          5,994,350          6,149,610          6,309,040         

Total 121,670,033     104,540,430     104,231,690     108,949,790      93,949,190       109,283,980     107,544,700     109,358,970    

Expenditures by Type:
System Total Operating Expenditures 78,071,379       82,156,830       81,848,090       85,867,790        87,063,590       90,156,380       93,122,100       96,182,370      

System Total Capital Expenditures 43,598,654       22,383,600       22,383,600       23,082,000        6,885,600          19,127,600       14,422,600       13,176,600      
Total 121,670,033     104,540,430     104,231,690     108,949,790      93,949,190       109,283,980     107,544,700     109,358,970    

General Fund Detail:
General Fund ‐ Sun Tran, Sun Van, Transit Services 39,093,295       41,759,100       41,688,773       44,168,380        46,788,890       50,130,160       51,232,050       53,573,970      
General Fund ‐ CIP 777,030             2,520,040          2,520,040          4,290,000           1,890,400          3,974,400          2,778,400          2,885,400         

Sub‐Total Mass Transit 39,870,325       44,279,140       44,208,813       48,458,380        48,679,290       54,104,560       54,010,450       56,459,370      
General Fund ‐ Sun Link, Transit Services 85,489               905,170             2,271,490          3,136,950           3,245,350          3,347,362          3,464,064          3,583,758         

Total Mass Transit & Sun Link Funds 39,955,814       45,184,310       46,480,303       51,595,330        51,924,640       57,451,922       57,474,514       60,043,128      

GF Operating Only 39,178,784       42,664,270       43,960,263       47,305,330        50,034,240       53,477,522       54,696,114       57,157,728      
General Fund ‐ CIP 777,030             2,520,040          2,520,040          4,290,000           1,890,400          3,974,400          2,778,400          2,885,400         

39,955,814       45,184,310       46,480,303       51,595,330        51,924,640       57,451,922       57,474,514       60,043,128      

City of Tucson
Department of Transportation

Mass Transit System
Five Year Financial Forecast

Summary

Combined
Operating & CIP
Expenses by Mode

Combined
Operating & CIP
Expenses by Mode

5 Year Forecast  Page 1 of 8 4/1/2015 



Attachment A ‐ Five Year Financial Forecast

FY 2014   
Actuals 

FY 2015    
Budget 

FY 2015 
Projection 

 FY 2016 
Forecast 

FY 2017 
Forecast 

FY 2018 
Forecast 

FY 2019 
Forecast 

FY 2020 
Forecast 

Operating Revenue Sources:
Sun Tran Regular & Express Fixed Routes:

Farebox 11,966,389       13,588,800       11,400,000       11,590,000        11,772,300       12,031,300       12,296,000       12,566,500      
Regional Transportation Authority 7,265,913          6,504,790          7,449,590          7,254,710           7,399,810          7,547,800          7,698,770          7,852,740         
Regional Transportation Authority:

Pass‐thru funding from Other Jurisdictions 3,490,338          3,769,480          3,655,750          4,183,690           4,267,360          4,352,710          4,439,760          4,528,560         
General Fund 28,149,354       29,453,150       29,894,851       32,335,910        34,310,940       37,118,480       37,800,120       39,669,670      
Federal Funding

FTA Grant Preventive Maintenance 5,884,720          3,600,000          3,662,847          4,640,000           4,640,000          3,640,000          4,640,000          4,640,000         
FTA Funding 391,828             1,048,800          1,214,552          502,240              92,640               76,000               120,000             80,000              
Other Federal Funding 21,166               150,000             230,000             ‐                     

Advertising 353,521             390,000             250,000             253,750              276,940             322,500             356,250             391,880            
1 Other Funding Sources 863,263             645,980             445,000             570,650              582,060             593,700             605,560             617,680            

Sun Tran Regular & Express Routes Total Revenues 58,386,492       59,151,000       58,202,590       61,330,950        63,342,050       65,682,490       67,956,460       70,347,030      
1.3% ‐1.6% 5.4% 3.3% 3.7% 3.5% 3.5%

Sun Van Paratransit:
Farebox 742,982             719,900             764,910             780,230              795,810             811,730             827,950             844,520            
Regional Transportation Authority 775,204             940,210             866,900             940,210              959,010             978,190             997,750             1,017,710         
Regional Transportation Authority:

Pass‐thru funding from Other Jurisdictions 1,240,780          1,482,030          1,367,860          1,358,610           1,385,780          1,413,500          1,441,770          1,470,600         
General Fund  10,576,005       11,723,460       11,211,432       11,318,720        11,703,690       12,214,620       12,611,390       13,059,560      
Federal Funding

FTA Grant Preventive Maintenance 1,008,000          500,000             500,000             960,000              960,000             960,000             960,000             960,000            
FTA Grant Capital Purchases 128,605             242,000             588,328             44,000                ‐                      ‐                      40,000               ‐                     

2 FTA 5310 Program  256,386             256,400             200,000             200,000              200,000             200,000             200,000             200,000            
3 State Funding (DDD/DES Program) 258,000             ‐                      ‐                      ‐                      ‐                      ‐                      ‐                     
1 Other Funding Sources 42,487               38,000               45,000               38,160                36,720               37,450               38,200               38,960              

Sun Van Total Revenues 14,770,449       16,160,000       15,544,430       15,639,930        16,041,010       16,615,490       17,117,060       17,591,350      
9.4% ‐3.8% 0.6% 2.6% 3.6% 3.0% 2.8%

City of Tucson
Department of Transportation

Mass Transit System
Five Year Financial Forecast
Revenue Sources by Mode

5 Year Forecast  Page 2 of 8 4/1/2015 



Attachment A ‐ Five Year Financial Forecast

FY 2014   
Actuals 

FY 2015    
Budget 

FY 2015 
Projection 

 FY 2016 
Forecast 

FY 2017 
Forecast 

FY 2018 
Forecast 

FY 2019 
Forecast 

FY 2020 
Forecast 

Operating Revenue Sources (Continued):
Transit Services:

General Fund (Fund 095) 367,936             582,490             582,490             513,750              774,260             797,060             820,540             844,740            
General Fund (Fund 096) 25,180                25,810               25,810               25,810               25,810              
Regional Transportation Authority 73,565               120,000             120,000             121,800              125,450             129,210             133,090             137,080            
Federal Funding
4 FTA Grant Projects & Administration (5307) 107,583             261,920             261,920             465,190              160,000             160,000             160,000             160,000            
5 FTA JARC & New Freedom Programs 87,035               ‐                      ‐                      127,640             
FTA Pass‐thru funding to Other Jurisdictions 800,255             1,372,260          1,372,260          1,569,400           500,000             500,000             500,000             500,000            

1 Other Funding Sources 461,091             307,600             307,600             365,900              244,630             251,970             259,530             267,320            
Transit Services Total Revenues  1,897,465         2,644,270         2,644,270         3,188,860          1,830,150         1,864,050         1,898,970         1,934,950        

39.4% 0.0% 20.6% ‐42.6% 1.9% 1.9% 1.9%

Sun Link Streetcar:
6 Farebox ‐                      1,196,390          1,185,310          1,196,000           1,219,920          1,244,318          1,269,206          1,294,592         
7 Regional Transportation Authority 874,841             2,000,000          2,000,000          1,200,000           1,200,000          1,200,000          1,200,000          1,200,000         
8 Sun Link ‐ General Fund 85,489               905,170             2,271,490          3,111,770           3,219,540          3,321,552          3,438,254          3,557,948         
Federal Funding
Other Funding Sources 2,056,643          116,280              118,610             120,980             123,400             125,870            
Advertising ‐                      100,000             ‐                      84,000                92,310               107,500             118,750             130,630            

Sun Link Total Revenues 3,016,973         4,201,560         5,456,800         5,708,050          5,850,380         5,994,350         6,149,610         6,309,040        

System Total Operating Revenues  78,071,379       82,156,830       81,848,090       85,867,790        87,063,590       90,156,380       93,122,100       96,182,370      

5.2% ‐0.4% 4.9% 1.4% 3.6% 3.3% 3.3%

City of Tucson
Department of Transportation

Mass Transit System
Five Year Financial Forecast
Revenue Sources by Mode

5 Year Forecast  Page 3 of 8 4/1/2015 



Attachment A ‐ Five Year Financial Forecast

FY 2014   
Actuals 

FY 2015    
Budget 

FY 2015 
Projection 

 FY 2016 
Forecast 

FY 2017 
Forecast 

FY 2018 
Forecast 

FY 2019 
Forecast 

FY 2020 
Forecast 

Capital Revenue Sources:
Sun Tran:

Regional Transportation Authority 1,700,720          969,900             969,900             699,900              ‐                      ‐                      ‐                      ‐                     
General Fund 457,793             1,922,440          1,922,440          3,283,100           1,588,400          3,612,400          2,405,400          2,269,400         
Federal Funding (FTA) 4,094,405          13,362,860       13,362,860       11,325,000        3,473,200          13,337,200       9,773,200          7,232,200         

Sun Tran Total Capital Revenues 6,252,918         16,255,200       16,255,200       15,308,000        5,061,600         16,949,600       12,178,600       9,501,600        
160.0% 0.0% ‐5.8% ‐66.9% 234.9% ‐28.1% ‐22.0%

Sun Van:
Regional Transportation Authority ‐                      32,300               32,300               ‐                      ‐                      ‐                      ‐                      ‐                     
General Fund 319,237             597,600             597,600             1,006,900           302,000             362,000             373,000             616,000            
Federal Funding (FTA) 1,558,624          3,484,300          3,484,300          4,967,100           1,522,000          1,816,000          1,871,000          3,059,000         

Sun Van Total Capital Revenues 1,877,861         4,114,200         4,114,200         5,974,000          1,824,000         2,178,000         2,244,000         3,675,000        
119.1% 0.0% 45.2% ‐69.5% 19.4% 3.0% 63.8%

Transit Services:
Federal Funding (FTA) 393,278             2,014,200          2,014,200          1,800,000           ‐                      ‐                      ‐                      ‐                     
FTA Federal Funding: ‐                      ‐                      ‐                      ‐                      ‐                     

Pass‐thru funding to Other Jurisdictions ‐                      ‐                      ‐                      ‐                      ‐                      ‐                      ‐                      ‐                     
Transit Services Total Capital Revenues 393,278             2,014,200         2,014,200         1,800,000          ‐                      ‐                      ‐                      ‐                     

412.2% 0.0% ‐10.6%
Sun Link Streetcar:

Regional Transportation Authority 28,276,081       ‐                      ‐                      ‐                      ‐                      ‐                     
Federal Funding (FTA) 834,960             ‐                      ‐                      ‐                      ‐                      ‐                     
Other Funding Sources  23,313               ‐                      ‐                      ‐                      ‐                      ‐                     
Certificates of Participation Funding 5,940,243         

Sun Link Total Capital Revenues 35,074,597       ‐                      ‐                      ‐                      ‐                      ‐                      ‐                      ‐                     

 System Total Capital Revenues 43,598,654       22,383,600       22,383,600       23,082,000        6,885,600         19,127,600       14,422,600       13,176,600      

System Total Operating & Capital Revenues 121,670,033     104,540,430     104,231,690     108,949,790      93,949,190       109,283,980     107,544,700     109,358,970    
‐14.1% ‐0.3% 4.5% ‐13.8% 16.3% ‐1.6% 1.7%

General Fund                777,030             2,520,040             2,520,040             4,290,000             1,890,400             3,974,400             2,778,400             2,885,400 
FTA            5,653,029           16,847,160           16,847,160           16,292,100             4,995,200           15,153,200           11,644,200           10,291,200 
RTA            1,700,720                 969,900                 969,900                 699,900                            ‐                              ‐                              ‐                              ‐   
Total for Sun Tran  & Sun Van only            8,130,779           20,337,100           20,337,100           21,282,000             6,885,600           19,127,600           14,422,600           13,176,600 

150.1% 0.0% 4.6% ‐67.6% 177.8% ‐24.6% ‐8.6%

City of Tucson
Department of Transportation

Mass Transit System
Five Year Financial Forecast
Revenue Sources by Mode

5 Year Forecast  Page 4 of 8 4/1/2015 



Attachment A ‐ Five Year Financial Forecast1

2

3

4

5

6 Sun Link service began revenue operations service in July 2014.

7

8 Sun Link General Fund includes repayment of debt service for the construction project and vehicles beginning in FY 2015 year end projections.

FTA 5310 Transportation for Elderly Persons and Persons with Disabilities Grant provides reimbursement to offset the cost of non‐ADA service provided by Sun Van up to grant award.

Arizona Department of Economic Security/Division of Developmental Disabilities program provides funding for specific trips for clients eligible through the state. Sun Van is currently in 
the application process to become a qualified provider through this program. 

Grants Administration and Training are programmed in the Transit Services Operating Budget.

JARC Grant includes funding for the Downtown Loop Service. Since Sun Van provides this service, beginning in FY15, the budget has been moved to Sun Van's budget. New Freedom 
Grant includes funding for the START Training Program. Since Sun Van provides this service, beginning in FY15, the budget has been moved to Sun Van's budget.

RTA total contribution of $12.7 million for operations and maintenance requested to fund operations and maintenance costs during pre‐revenue and revenue service through FY 2016. 
At the Mayor & Council's request, the RTA Board approved the $2 million in FY15 and remaining years at $1.2 million each year through FY 2024.

Other Funding Sources: Shuttle service, Charter service, auxiliary transit revenues (SunGO cards, administrative fees, product fees, concessions sales at Transit Centers), recovered 
expenditures (CNG Rebate (ended12/2014), TEP solar rebate, recycled oil), rentals/leases and other miscellaneous revenue and advertising (in the summary rollup section).  

5 Year Forecast  Page 5 of 8 4/1/2015 



Attachment A ‐ Five Year Financial Forecast

FY 2014   
Actuals 

FY 2015    
Budget 

FY 2015 
Projection 

 FY 2016 
Forecast 

FY 2017 
Forecast 

FY 2018 
Forecast 

FY 2019 
Forecast 

FY 2020 
Forecast 

Operating Expenditures:
Sun Tran Regular & Express Fixed Routes:

Personnel Services:
Salaries         24,478,609          25,070,240          25,227,480          26,508,720          27,307,420          28,160,920          29,008,370          29,881,170 
Benefits         11,196,288          11,809,940          11,253,360          12,586,420          13,592,700          14,705,170          15,936,180          17,299,460 

Services:
Management Contract               354,946                373,750                373,750                392,450                404,220                416,350                428,840                441,710 
Other Services            4,349,788             4,914,740             5,200,010             5,098,590             5,329,380             5,262,310             5,460,290             5,501,760 

Supplies:
Fuel           8,216,111            8,739,400            7,175,600            7,670,800            7,951,900            8,182,800            7,982,100            7,915,100 
Vehicle Maintenance           5,037,766            4,333,540            4,642,340            4,658,780            4,743,690            4,838,710            4,874,880            4,967,210 
Other Supplies            1,270,840             1,580,040             2,041,980             2,403,190             1,922,890             1,966,140             2,007,960             2,077,390 

Equipment:
Non‐Revenue Vehicles/Other Equipment               153,302                240,000                218,330                  55,000                  85,000                  95,000                150,000                100,000 
Transit Security/Training FEMA Grant                          ‐                             ‐                             ‐   

                         ‐                             ‐                             ‐   
Liability Insurance 842,842             889,350                           869,740                957,000            1,004,850            1,055,090            1,107,840            1,163,230 
Liability Reserve Contribution 2,486,000          1,200,000                    1,200,000            1,000,000            1,000,000            1,000,000            1,000,000            1,000,000 

Total Sun Tran  Operating Expenditures 58,386,492       59,151,000       58,202,590       61,330,950        63,342,050       65,682,490       67,956,460       70,347,030      

1.3% ‐1.6% 5.4% 3.3% 3.7% 3.5% 3.5%

Sun Van Paratransit:
Personnel Services:

Salaries 7,163,854          7,482,330          7,304,140          7,648,800           7,878,200          8,114,570          8,358,020          8,608,780         
Benefits 2,039,953          2,337,540          2,236,450          2,483,790           2,552,730          2,623,700          2,696,730          2,771,970         

Services:
Management Contract (Veolia) 175,973             187,090             166,800             196,400              202,290             208,360             214,610             221,050            
Other Services 684,465             1,125,060          809,150             902,060              968,590             1,121,920          1,128,980          1,179,990         
Vehicle Maintenance 2,175,682          2,441,000          2,200,000          2,310,000           2,379,300          2,450,680          2,524,200          2,599,930         

Supplies:
Fuel 1,924,890          2,051,320          1,644,260          1,488,100           1,488,000          1,507,500          1,538,100          1,584,700         
Other Supplies 97,862               75,840               655,990             72,280                74,220               76,200               78,230               80,330              

Equipment:
Non‐Revenue Vehicles/Other Equipment 26,372               ‐                      28,430               55,000                ‐                      ‐                      50,000               ‐                     

Liability Insurance 231,398             259,820             249,210             283,500              297,680             312,560             328,190             344,600            
Liability Reserve Contribution 250,000             200,000             250,000             200,000              200,000             200,000             200,000             200,000            

Sun Van Paratransit Total Operating Expenditures 14,770,449       16,160,000       15,544,430       15,639,930        16,041,010       16,615,490       17,117,060       17,591,350      

9.4% ‐3.8% 0.6% 2.6% 3.6% 3.0% 2.8%

Operating & Capital Expenditures by Mode

City of Tucson
Department of Transportation

Mass Transit System
Five Year Financial Forecast

5 Year Forecast  Page 6 of 8 4/1/2015 



Attachment A ‐ Five Year Financial Forecast

FY 2014   
Actuals 

FY 2015    
Budget 

FY 2015 
Projection 

 FY 2016 
Forecast 

FY 2017 
Forecast 

FY 2018 
Forecast 

FY 2019 
Forecast 

FY 2020 
Forecast 

Operating Expenditures (Continued):
Transit Services:

Personnel Services:
Salaries 445,264             307,420             307,420             372,400              383,570             395,080             406,930             419,140            
Labor Credits (181,680)            (51,710)              (51,710)              (25,850)               (26,630)              (27,430)              (28,250)              (29,100)             
Benefits 237,198             162,780             162,780             183,600              189,110             194,780             200,620             206,640            

Services 535,308             476,320             476,320             527,580              543,410             559,710             576,500             593,800            
Supplies 21,287               37,500               37,500               39,500                40,690               41,910               43,170               44,470              
FTA Grant Projects 39,833               309,700             309,700             492,230              200,000             200,000             200,000             200,000            
FTA Sub‐Recipient Pass‐Through Projects 800,255             1,402,260          1,402,260          1,599,400           500,000             500,000             500,000             500,000            

Transit Services Total Operating Expenditures 1,897,465         2,644,270         2,644,270         3,188,860          1,830,150         1,864,050         1,898,970         1,934,950        
Excludes Pass‐Through Projects 1,097,210         1,242,010         1,242,010         1,589,460          1,330,150         1,364,050         1,398,970         1,434,950        

Excludes Grants 13.2% 0.0% 28.0% ‐16.3% 2.5% 2.6% 2.6%

Sun Link Streetcar:
Personnel Services:

Salaries 803,714             1,387,140          1,386,990          1,547,510           1,611,500          1,659,850          1,709,650          1,760,940         
Benefits 101,158             450,350             297,300             429,160              473,450             507,670             545,040             585,860            

Services:
Management Contract (RDMT)  847,047             776,450             776,450             787,920              811,560             835,910             860,990             886,820            
Facilities Utilities 76,051               328,290             196,460             110,500              129,270             133,150             137,140             141,250            
Other Services 406,753             689,330             602,060             678,630              685,020             707,100             729,940             753,540            
Electricity for Revenue Vehicles (Fuel) 56,660               160,000              164,800             169,740             174,830             180,070            

Supplies:
Fuel for Non Revenue Vehicles 3,792                  18,000               10,220               10,000                10,300               10,610               10,930               11,260              
Vehicle Maintenance 10,039               125,000             163,280             190,000              195,700             201,580             207,620             213,840            
Other Supplies 168,509             177,000             32,220               91,900                94,660               97,490               100,410             103,440            

Other Equipment 145,443             ‐                      ‐                      ‐                      ‐                      ‐                      ‐                      ‐                     
Debt Service 1,511,780          1,512,430           1,514,120          1,511,250          1,513,060          1,512,020         
Liability Insurance 454,467             250,000             173,380             ‐                      ‐                      ‐                      ‐                      ‐                     
Liability Reserve Contribution ‐                      250,000             190,000              160,000             160,000             160,000             160,000            

Sun Link Total Operating Expenditures 3,016,973         4,201,560         5,456,800         5,708,050          5,850,380         5,994,350         6,149,610         6,309,040        

System Total Operating Expenditures 78,071,379       82,156,830       81,848,090       85,867,790        87,063,590       90,156,380       93,122,100       96,182,370      

Operating & Capital Expenditures by Mode

City of Tucson
Department of Transportation

Mass Transit System
Five Year Financial Forecast

5 Year Forecast  Page 7 of 8 4/1/2015 



Attachment A ‐ Five Year Financial Forecast

FY 2014   
Actuals 

FY 2015    
Budget 

FY 2015 
Projection 

 FY 2016 
Forecast 

FY 2017 
Forecast 

FY 2018 
Forecast 

FY 2019 
Forecast 

FY 2020 
Forecast 

Capital Expenditures:
Sun Tran:

Capital Equipment:
Replacement Buses 4,113,029          15,222,600       15,222,600       8,400,000           ‐                      11,696,000       10,907,000       8,280,000         
Expansion Buses ‐                     
Security ‐                      ‐                      ‐                      170,800              170,800             170,800             170,800             170,800            

Construction 2,033,534          3,046,800          3,046,800          6,074,900           4,720,000          4,912,000          930,000             880,000            
ADA Enhancements 106,355             ‐                      ‐                      662,300              170,800             170,800             170,800             170,800            

Sun Tran Total Capital Expenditures 6,252,918         18,269,400       18,269,400       15,308,000        5,061,600         16,949,600       12,178,600       9,501,600        
Sun Van:

Capital Equipment:
Replacement Vans 1,877,861          3,924,200          3,924,200          5,784,000           1,824,000          2,178,000          2,244,000          3,675,000         
Expansion Vans ‐                      190,000             190,000             190,000              ‐                      ‐                      ‐                      ‐                     

Sun Van Total Capital Expenditures 1,877,861         4,114,200         4,114,200         5,974,000          1,824,000         2,178,000         2,244,000         3,675,000        
Transit Services:

Capital Equipment:
Construction 393,278             ‐                      ‐                      1,800,000           ‐                      ‐                      ‐                      ‐                     
FTA Sub‐Recipient Pass‐Through Projects ‐                      ‐                      ‐                      ‐                      ‐                      ‐                      ‐                      ‐                     

Transit Services Total Capital Expenditures 393,278             ‐                      ‐                      1,800,000          ‐                      ‐                      ‐                      ‐                     
Sun Link Streetcar:

Construction 35,074,597       ‐                      ‐                      ‐                      ‐                      ‐                      ‐                     
Sun Link Total Capital Expenditures 35,074,597       ‐                      ‐                      ‐                      ‐                      ‐                      ‐                      ‐                     

 System Total Capital Expenditures 43,598,654       22,383,600       22,383,600       23,082,000        6,885,600         19,127,600       14,422,600       13,176,600      

System Total Operating & Capital Expenditures 121,670,033     104,540,430     104,231,690     108,949,790      93,949,190       109,283,980     107,544,700     109,358,970    

* The amounts in this schedule are supported by the City of Tucson's FY 2015 Adopted Capital Improvement Plan.

City of Tucson
Department of Transportation

Mass Transit System
Five Year Financial Forecast

Operating & Capital Expenditures by Mode

5 Year Forecast  Page 8 of 8 4/1/2015 



Attachment B: IAPC Recommendations 















































 
 

 
 
 

 
 
Item 8: Bus Stop Signage Presentation 

 
   Page: 1 of 1 

  
 
Issue –  This is an agenda item to update Transit Task Force members of the status of Bus Stop 
signage.  
 
Staff Recommendation – None. This is an information item.   

Background – Sun Tran has approximately 2,300 stops and shelters.  In 2009 Sun Tran, Sun Van 
and Sun Shuttle began  a re-branding project.  Bus stop signs were to have been re-designed and 
replaced  as part of the re-image.    Staff has been working on the re-design and have taken 
suggestions made by the task force and task force meeting attendees into consideration.   
 
Present Consideration – Staff has provided information on the Bus Stop Design for review, 
discussion and comment.   
 
Financial Considerations – Estimate of materials, production and installation is $185,000.00.  
 
Attachments:  None. 
 

 

 TRANSIT TASK FORCE MEMORANDUM 

 
 



 
 

 
 
 

 
 
Item 9: Broadway-Houghton Park and Ride Update  

 
   Page: 1 of 2 

  
 
Issue –  This is an agenda item to update Transit Task Force members of the status of the 
Broadway-Houghton Park and Ride.  
 
Staff Recommendation – None. This is an information item.   
 
Background – The City of Tucson Department of Transportation (TDOT) designed a Park and 
Ride lot in conjunction with the Houghton Road Corridor improvements.  The Houghton Road 
Corridor improvements were made possible by the voter-approved Regional Transportation 
Authority (RTA) Plan and funding.  Construction of the Park and Ride began  in July of 2013 and 
is scheduled for completion in May of 2015.   
 
Due to the initial construction schedule, Sun Tran did not anticipate beginning service to the 
Houghton Park and Ride until August of 2015; however, due to the revised completion date, Sun 
Tran is considering beginning service to the Houghton Park and Ride lot in conjunction with the 
May 2015 bid.     
 
It is proposed that the Houghton Park and Ride will be serviced by Routes 4 - Speedway, 8 - 
Broadway and 108X – Broadway/Downtown Express.  The current routes  8 and 108X turn north 
onto Harrison from Broadway Blvd., travel northbound and  service the Speedway/Harrison Park 
and Ride lot.  Routes 8 and 108X then travel southbound to Broadway Blvd., turn right onto 
Broadway Blvd. and head westbound.   
 
The current Route 4 travels eastbound on Speedway Blvd.  The route services the Speedway/ 
Harrison Park and Ride lot and then travels westbound on Speedway Blvd.   
 
Effective May 24,2015 Routes 8 and 108X will travel eastbound on Broadway Blvd., service the 
Houghton Park and Ride and then travel westbound on Broadway Blvd.  The segment between 
Speedway Blvd. and Broadway Blvd. will be discontinued.   
 
Route 4 will service the Speedway/Harrison Park and Ride lot,  travel southbound on Harrison, 
turn left on Broadway Blvd., travel eastbound,  service the Broadway Houghton Park and Ride lot, 
travel westbound on BroadwayBlvd., turn right on Harrison, turn left on SpeedwayBlvd. and 
travel westbound on Speedway Blvd.  Route 4 buses will not enter the Speedway/Harrison Park 
and Ride lot but will service the Park and  Ride via bus stops on Harrison and Speedway. 
 
Changes to the Route 4, 8 and 108X will be communicated to the public through local media 
outlets, online, information posted on Route 4, 8 and 108X buses, as well as at transit centers and 
the Special Services office.  Additionally, drivers of these routes will be encouraged to make 
announcements leading up to and after the routing changes go into effect to ensure passengers are 

 

 TRANSIT TASK FORCE MEMORANDUM 

 
 



 
TRANSIT TASK FORCE MEMORANDUM 
Agenda Item 9 – Broadway-Houghton Park and Ride Update 
April 6, 2015 Meeting 
 

 
 Page 2  of  2 

  

 
aware.  Customer Service will be well-versed on these changes in order to answer passenger 
questions. 
 
Present Considerations - Staff would like feedback from  task force members on the proposed 
changes to the Route 4, 8 and 108X.  
 
 
Financial Considerations – There are no additional costs for the changes to the Route 8 and 108X.  
Implementing the change to the Route 4 with the May 2015 bid represents  an additional cost of   
$35,000, during May and June of FY 2015.   
 
Attachments:  Current and Proposed Route 8, 108X and 4 maps 
 



Attachment A: Current and Proposed Maps


	Item 01 - 04-06-15_TTF Agenda FINAL
	Monday, April 6, 2015 at 4:00 p.m.

	Item 03 - Draft Minutes 3-2-15
	Monday, March 2, 2015, 4:00 p.m.

	Item 05 - Update on Transit
	Transit Task Force Memorandum
	   Page: 1 of 1
	Item 5: Update on Transit/Announcements

	Item 06 - Five Year Financial Forecast_draft
	Transit Task Force Memorandum
	   Page: 1 of 1
	Item 6: Five Year Financial Forecast

	Item 06a - FIve Year Transit Forecasr FY16 - FY20
	Item 06b - Attachment B City of Tucson Independent Audit and Performance Commission 2015
	Item 08 - Bus Stop Signage Final
	Transit Task Force Memorandum
	   Page: 1 of 1
	Item 8: Bus Stop Signage Presentation

	Item 09 -Broadway Houghton Park and Ride_draft_Bob Edits_FINAL
	Transit Task Force Memorandum
	   Page: 1 of 2
	Item 9: Broadway-Houghton Park and Ride Update 

	Item 09a -Broadway Houghton Park and Ride_draft_Bob Edits_FINAL



